Q

U.S. Department of Transportation 1200 New Jersey Ave, S.E.

. . . Washington, D.C. 20590
Pipeline and Hazardous Materials
Safety Administration

JUL 3 112013

Mr, Andrew N. Romach
Regulatory Compliance Manager
URS Corporation

1600 Perimeter Park Drive
Morrisville, NC 27560

Ref. No. 13-0125
Dear Mr. Romach:

This responds to your June 14, 2013 letter regarding a previous letter of interpretation 02-
0120 dated October 18, 2002 (see enclosed) that summarized exceptions provided in

§§ 173.150 and 173.220 of the Hazardous Materials Regulations (HMR; 49 CFR Parts 171-
180). Your questions are paraphrased and answered as follows:

Q1. With regard to the paragraph citations to § 173.220 in Q1 and A1l of the letter,
does letter of interpretation 02-0120 remain valid even though subsequent
rulemakings have made changes to the paragraph citations?

Al. Yes, although paragraph citations in § 173.220 have been changed by
rulemaking, the content of the letter remains valid. An internal combustion engine
containing only residual flammable liquid fuel up to 500 mL (17 ounces) and that is
transported by motor vehicle is not subject to any additional requirements of the
HMR (see § 173.220(b)(1) and (h)(1)).

Q2. Is a flammable liquid with a flash point greater than or equal to 38°C (100°F)
that is contained in an aviation turbine engine with a capacity less than 119 gal (450
L) still eligible for exception from the HMR under § 173.150(f).

A2. Yes. Inaccordance with § 173.150(f), a flammable liquid (as defined in

§ 173.120) with a flash point greater than or equal to 38°C (100°F) that does not
meet the definition of any other hazard class and that is transported by motor vehicle
or rail (i.e., ground transportation) may be reclassed as a combustible liquid. A
combustible liquid in a non-bulk packaging transported by motor vehicle or rail 1s
not subject to the HMR unless the material is a hazardous substance, a hazardous
waste, or a marine pollutant.

Note that the regulatory revision to the upper limit of the flash point range from
60.5°C (141°F) to 60°C (140°F) (see rulemaking HM-2151 (December 26, 2006;
78596, 78631)) for defining a material as a flammable liquid has no bearing on the
response. The reclassification of a material as combustible is based on whether the
flash point exceeds 38°C (100°F) and is transported by motor vehicle or rail (except




when these means of transport are impractical). See §§ 173.120(b)(2) and
173.150(f)(1).

I hope this information is helpful. If you have further questions, please contact this office.

Sincerely,

T Dt

Robert Benedict

Chief, Standards Development Branch
Standards and Rulemaking Division

Enclosure: Letter of Interpretation 02-—0120
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Mr. Charles Betts, Division Director ‘ 3 - 0 I 2 6
Standards and Rulemaking (PHH-10)

U.S. Department of Transportation

Pipeline and Hazardous Materials Safety Administration

East Building, 2nd Floor

1200 New Jersey Ave., SE

Washington, DC 20590

Dear Mr. Betts:

I am writing to confirm that the DOT regulatory interpretation 02-0120 (issued October 18,
2002) remains valid, as the interpretation is more than 10 years old and some of the regulatory
citations have changed based on a restructuring of the regulations in the interim. (See attached.)

For example:

Q1: 49 CFR 173.220(e)(1) is now 173.220(h)(1)

Al: 49 CFR 173.220(d)(2) is now 173.220(f)(2)

A3: The upper limit for the flashpoint range for a flammable liquid is now 60°C (140°F)

Also, please confirm that a flammable liquid (such as “Fuel, aviation, turbine engine”) with a
flash point at or above 38°C (100°F) that is present in an aviation turbine engine (“Engines,
internal combustion, flammable liquid powered”) with capacity less than 450 liters (119 gallons)
would be able to take advantage of the combustible liquid exception in 49 CFR 173.150(f) and
be shipped by ground transportation as excepted from the Hazardous Material Regulations
(HMR).

1 would appreciate your assistance with these questions.

Sincerely,

A TEE

e

Andrew N. Romach
Regulatory Compliance Manager
URS Corporation

URS Corporation

1600 Perimeter Park Drive Morrisville, NC 27560
Tel: 919.461.1220

Fax: 919.461.1371

andy.romach@urs.com
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Dear Mr. Ramach:

1ds, ‘such as gasollne or

fuel, under the Hazardous'Materlals Regulatlons (HMR; 49

We offer, for transportatlon by motor vehlcle, 1nternal
combustion engines containing residual flammable ligquid fuel
in guantities of less than 500 mL’ (17 ounces) in ‘accordance
with § 173.220(¢ b)(l) Are we ellglble for the exceptlons
provided under § 173. 220(e)(1)°" o T '

The answer is yes. Except for other hazardous materials
specified in § 173.220(d) (2), -inteérnal combustion engines
shipped under the provisions of :§ 173.220 are not subject to
any additional reguirements of the HMR when. transported on a
transport vehicle. .

Can an internal combustion éngine be defined.as “mechanical
equipment” under the modal exceptions in § 173.220(b) (4)
and, therefore, contain a quantity of flammable Iiquid fuel
greater than 500 mlL (17 ounces) ?

The answer is no. Only mechanlcal equipment and self-
propelled vehicles may be offered for transportation
containing a guantity of fuel greater than 500 mL (17
ounces}. Mechanical equipment or apparatus will normally
contain a fuel tank, a battery, or both, of which an
internal combustion engine will be an integral part.

The engines we pffer for transportation are very large and,

with the fuel tanks removed; the fuel lines contain residual

fuel that cannot be drained to a gquantity of 500 miL (17

ounces) or below. How may an internal combustion engine be
described and classed for transportation on a transport

vehicle if it does not meet the definition of “mechanical
equipment” under the context of § 173.220(b) (4)? LD

1l o o
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A3. An internal combustion engine with fuel lines containing
more than 500 mL of residual flammable liquid fuel in
Packing Group II, such as gascline, must be offered for
transportation in UN standard packaging based on the
description and hazard class of the fuel itself, or under
the terms of a DOT exemptlon.

In a telephone COnversatlon with Mr. Michael Ste&vens of my
staff you also posed a scenarioc where the internal fuel
capacity of an aviation turbine engine was determined to be
less than 450 liters (119 gallens) and the engine contained
residual flammable llquld fuel (> 500 mL) with-a f£lash point
above 38 °C (100 °F).. You inguired whether the engine may
be excepted from the . HMR under the,combustlble llquld 1n
non—bulk packaglng provi'lons ln § : 3.150(f)(2)

-The answer is yes. A flammable Ilquld w1th a flash point--
between 38 °C (100 °F) and 60.5 ?C- (141 °F) -£hat ‘does not - 5,_,
meet the definition of any other-hazard class may be ' R
reclassed as a combustible . liquid when offered for S
transportation by motor *vehicle. : & gombustible llqdld in.a.
non-bulk packaging may be excepted-from the. requirements of:
the HMR under the conditions specifiad in.$§:.173.150(f).

I trust this satlsfles your 1nqulry. ?Pléaselcontact;us if we can
be of further assistance o : T - T : :

Slncerely, : s 1: ST e Ll

>Hatt1e L. Mitchell = )
Chief, Regulatory Review and Reinvention
Qffice of Hazardous Materiazls Standards
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FROM: URS CORPORRTION HNC FR® NO.: 9194611371 s 04~23-82 @4:R9P F.01

URS | Stevens
| April 23, 2002 ' } % , 73 : ZZO (,@ (,D

Pfﬂ,yar Shigping Name.
M. Ed Mazzullo, Director _ OZ 0 / y
Office of Hazardous Material Standards :
Research aad Special Programs Administration
U.S. Department of Transpormtmn
4G0 7th Street, SW
Washington, DC 20590-0001
FAX (202) 366-3012

i .

‘ Deaer Mazzullo:

e i N

[am wntmg 10 you to request 2 wntfen regulatozy mtezpretanon concemmg the appiopriate -

scenario for shipping by ground transportanon 2n internal combustion €ngine disconnected from -

its fuel tank and the fuel tank is not part of the shipment. ‘Lhe engine contains a residual amount

of fuel (such ss gasoline), but the éngine is sccurtly plugged arid eapped to prevent leakage . o
durmg transnt and contams no other hazardous matenals except for the fuel I have tiwo quesﬂons:‘ :

- L If the engine contains up ta 500 ml ( 17 omccs) ef' fuel;:would the enggine meet’ the
requirements of 49 CFR 173.220(b)(1) and be cxccpbcd from\thc haurdous material regulations
in 49 CFR 173 221(e)? ,

2. If the engine contains greater than 500 m} (17 ounces) uf fuel, would the engme meet the
definition of "mechanjoal equipment” as listéd tn 49 CFR 173. 220(b)(4)? In this instanoe, the
fuel tank has been removed from the engine so that it is irrelevant for the fuel tank to:be securely
closed. Would plugging and capping the fuel lines securely to ensure that they do not Jeak be
sufficient o meet these requirements? This particular engine is very:large, and although it only
contains a residual amount of fuel, even after the engine has been drained and purged, morxe than
500 ml of fuel could remain dispersed throughout the lings. If the engine discennected from its
engine is unable fo fake advantage of the modal exception in 49 CFR- 173.220(b)(4) what would

. be the appropriate proper shipping name, UN number and apprepriate scenaria for shipping this
engine by ground transportation?

I appreciate your consideration of this matter.

Sincerely,

Andrew N, Romac
Regulatory Manager
URS Corporation

URS Cerparation

1600 Perimeter Park Drive
Marmisville, NC 27560

Tei: 919.461.1220
Fax:919.461.13714
andy.,_remadch@urscorp.com






